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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUDT ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

We have audited e financial statementy of Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company {a Saudi Joint
Stock Company} (the "Company™), which comprise the staternent of fimancial position as at December 31,
2021, angd (he statemients of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then cnded, and notes to the financial siatenients, incliding a summary of sigaificant accounting policies,

in our opinion, the accompanying fnancial statements present fairly, fn all matesial respects, the financial
position of the Company as at. Decamber 31, 2021, and its financial performanee and its cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Siandards (IFR Sy} thet are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronoumeements issued by the Saudi Organization for
Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCPAL,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Internitional Standards of Auditing (“ISA™ that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our sesponsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Andii of the Financial Stearemenis scetion of our report, We are hidependent
of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduet and ethics that wre endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilied our
ather ethica)l responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We beltieve that the sudit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropeiate 1w provide a basis {or ouy opinion.

Key Aundit Mattey

Key audit matter 15 the matier that, v our professional judgernend, was of most significance in our audil of the
financial statements of the current year, This malter was addressed in e context of our 2udit of the Onancial
statements 4s a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For the matter below, a description of how cur audit addressed the matter is provided in that contéxt:
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSUBANCE COMPANY

(A BAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Key Andit Matter {eontinuad)

fhe E{ey-;‘m{ﬁ{ mafier

How ihe matter was addressed in our audit

Waluation of ulitiniafe ciaim im*’n iities. &nsmg
frora fusurance confracts

The Company as at Dedeniber 31, 2021 has gross
technical reserves amounting fo SR 593,123 million
ag reporied in Note 7 of the financial statements,
whicl includes outstending claimis, claims meourred
but vot veporied (IBNR), sddigonal premivm and
ater echnieal regerves,

The Company uses a range of actuarial
mathodologies [0 esthmate  these claims, This
requires significant judgments relating to factors and
agsumptions such as inflation, clains development
patrert and regulatory requirémeénts.

The wvaloation of technical veserves is a key
judgmental area for the management given tie feved
of subjectivity inherent in cstimating the impact of
clatm events that have ocewred for which the
ultimate outcome remaing unceriain,

Due to the significance of the amounis invalved and
the exerclse of significant judgment by fhe
management i the process for determination of the
technical reserves, we have determined itto bea kg
andit matter

Refer to nofes 2(d¥(1) which discloses the estimaied
fiability arising from claims uader  insurdnce
contracts and nofe 3 which discloses accounting
policies for claims.,

We  cvaluzied the  design  and  fested  the
implamentation of key conirals over the Compahy’s
nrocesses for the claims processing and payment,
inciuding. control§ over the completensss and
accuracy of the claim estimates recarded.

We evahusted the appropriatentess of the reserving
methodologies used In estimating the insurence claim
izam*v:y as part of our subsianiive procedures.

We performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a Sa*npie of claims notified. and paid;
fncliding comparing the owtstanding claims amount
10 appropriate sowrce dacumentation to cvaluate the
valuation of outstaniding claims and  technical
TESTYVES.

To challenge management’s methedelogics and
assumptions, we were asgisted by an actuary engaged
by us ag audifors’ expert to undesstand and evahuale
the Cowpany’s actuarial practices and the provisions
established. In order to gain comion over the actuarial
report issned by management’s expert, owr acluary
porformed the (bllowing:

- Evaluated whether the Company’s  sctuarial
methodologies wers consisient with those used in
the industyy and with prier periods, secking
sufficient justification for sigeificant differences.

- Assessed key uctarial assumplions inchuding

clabms rafios, and cxpected fiequency and
severity of claims. We challenged these
assummptions by comparing  them  with our

expectat%om basec‘ on the Company’s historieal
experience, cuent wends and our own Industry
knowledge,
- Reviewed the approprizteness of the caleulation
methods  and  approach  along  with  the
assumptions usad and sensitivities fo the key
assumiptions)

¢ alsa zasessed the appropristeness of the fnancial
statements disclosures relating to this matier against
the requirernents of JFRS thal are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TOTHE SHARBHOLDERS OF SAUDLARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A BAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The Management of the Company are respensible for the other information. The ather informistion comprises
the- information ineluded in the annual repor, other thean the fisancial stajements and owr audHors™ report
therean, The mwual report i3 expected o be made available (o us sfter the date of this andifors’ report.

Our opinion on ihe (inancial statements doegs notcover the other infopnation and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In conneciion with our audit of the finanial stafaments, our vespensibility is to read the other Infonmation
iderdified above when it becomes avatisble and, in doing so, consider whether (he ofher information is
materially inconsistent with. the financisl statoments or owr knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwvise
appears to be materially missiated.

When we read the other formation, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement thereln, we are
required fo comununicate the mafter to those charged with govemenee,

Responsihilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governnnee Tor the Financial Statements™
The Management ave responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the IFRSs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Ssudi Arabiz and other standards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companics, aud the

Company’s by-laws, and for such hernal control as the Management deformine 18 necessary to enable the
paiy _ g
preparation of financial statements that are fiee from waterial misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statesnents, the Management are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability o
confinue a5 a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters relaied to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Managoment sither infend to liguidate the Company or to cease
operaiions, or have no realistic allemative Lot to do so.

Those charged with gavernance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s finaneial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financisl Statements

Qur ohjecitves are to obiain reasonsble assurence about whether the financial stalements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or ervor, and 10 issue &y auditors” report that includes cur
opinion, Reagonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an sudit conducied in
accordance with Inferiational Standards o Anditing {ISA) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arsbia,
will always defect 2 material migstatement when 1f exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or ervor and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expeoted to influence the
coonomic decitions of users taken on the basis ol these financial statoments.

v

A

s part of an audit in aceordance with 1S4z that are éndorsed in the Kingdom of Szudi Arabia, we sxercise
wofessional pdgrment and maintain professional skepticisrn througiout the audii. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material missttement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
grror, desien and perform aedit procedures responsive o those risks, and oblein audiv evidence that is
sufficient and appropiate © provide 5 basis for our opinien, The risk of not deteviing a material
misslatement resulling from frand Is higher tan for one resuling from error, as [rand may invelve
cotlusion, Torgery, intentional omissions, nusrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

L3

s Cbizin an understanding of internal conirol refevant 1o the audit i order to desipn avdit pracedures that are
aroronriate i the clvcumsionces, bot not for the purpose of oxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
p» I3 E § i b3 = ]

the Company’s infernal control
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAUM ARARIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A BAUBI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) - (CONTINUED)

Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of #he Filnancial Statements (Continued)

= Bvaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasenablenass of accounting csiimates
and refated disclosures made by the Management;

& Conclude on the appropriateness of Masagement use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mafecial nncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant-dowbt on the Company’s ability 1o continur as a going concern, If wa conelude thata
material uncertainly existé, we aré required o drew aktention in our auditors’ report fo the related
disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inedequate, 10 modify our opinion. Our
caniclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the dase of our auditors” report. However, futire
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o condinue as a going concers; and

e PEvaluate the overall presemiafion, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undexlying transactions and events in a
marmer that achieves falr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, ihe planied scope and
tinsing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal conirod that
wo identify during cur audit of the Company.

We also provide those charged with governpnce with a siatémesnt that we have comphied with relevaut ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with. them zli relationships and other matters thas
may seasanably be thought to bear on our independende, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters comnmnicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance i the audit of the financial statements of the cument yenr and are therefore the key audit
miatters, We describe these matiers in our andifors' seporf unless law or repulation prectudes public disclasure
about the matter ar when, in extremely rere circumstances, we determine that & matter should not be
zomupanicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expecied o
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(All armonnts in Sandi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

1 ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under commercial registration No, 1010237214 dated 7 Shaban [428H. (corresponding to 20
August 2007). The registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box 38073, Riyadh 11594, Kingdem of Saudi Arabia.
The objective of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance eperations and related activities in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. The Company's principal lines of business include ail classes of general and medical insurance. The Company was
Jisted on the Saudi Stock Exchange (~Tadawul™) on 20 Shaban 142811 (corresponding 1o 3 September 2007).

Following are the details of the branches of the Company and their commercial registration numbers:

Commercial

Registration
Branch Name Branch Number Date
Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company Jeddah 4030208674 25 Safar [432H (31 January 2011)
Saudi Arabian Ceoperative Insurance Company Khobar 2051044793 25 Safar 14320 (31 January 2011)
Saudi Arabian Cooperative Insurance Company Qassim 1131034133 23 Safar 1432H (31 January 2011)

The Company has been licensed to conduct insurance business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under co-opcrative
principles in accordance with Royal [Decree numbered 60/M dated 18 Ramadan 1427H (corresponding to 11 October 2006),
pursuant (o the Council of Ministers resolution numhber 233 dated 16 Ramadan 14271 (corresponding to & October 2006).
Following the completion of the public oflering on 28 May 2007, the Ministry of Commerce and Investment ("MOCH)
issued a resolution declaring the incorporation of the Company on 21 Rajab 1428 (corresponding o 5 August 2007).

On 29 Shaban 14281 (corresponding 1o 11 September 2007), the Saudi Central Bank ("SAMA™) issued a formal approval
to lransact insurance business, thus authorizing the Company 1o commence operations as soon as product approval and
refated formalitics are completed.

The Board of Directors approved the distribution of the surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the
Implementing Regulations issued by SAMA. wherehy the sharcholders of the Company are to reccive 90% of the annual
surplus from insurance operations and the policy holders are to receive the remaining 10%, Any deficit arising on insurance
operations is horne by the sharcholders in full.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)  Basis of presentation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'). that
are endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for
Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCTA). Law of Companies and the Company's by-laws.




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amowunts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a)  Basis of presentation and measurement (continued}

These financial statements are preparcd under the going concern concept and the historical cost convention, except for the
investments carried at fair value through profit or loss investments, available-for-sale investments and employees’ end-of-
service benefit recognised at the present value of future obligations using the projected unit credit method. The Company’s
statement of {inancial position is not presented using a current/non-current classification. However, the fotowing balances
would generally be classified as non-current; FHeld to maturity investments. Property and equipment, Intangible assets,
Statutory deposit. Accrued income on statutery deposit, Employees' end-ol-service bencfits and Accrued commission
income payable to SAMA, All other financial statement line items would generally be classified as current.

The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance
Regulations, the Company maintains separate books ol accounts for Insurance Operations and Sharcholders’ Operations and
aresents the financial statements accordingly (Note 26). Assels. labitities, revenues and expenses clearly attributable 1o
cither activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of expenses from joint operations is
determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors.

The statement of financial position, statement of income, statement ot comprehensive income and statement of cash flows off
the insurance operations and sharchotders eperations which are presented in Note 26 of the financial statements have been
provided as supplementary financial information 1o comply with the requircments of the guidelines issucd by SAMA
implementing regulations and is not required under IFRSs. SAMA implementing regulations requires the clear segregation
of the assets, liabilitics, income and expenses of the insurance operations and the sharcholders operations. Accordingly. the
statements of financial position, statements of income, statement of comprchensive income and statement of cash flows
prepared for the insurance operations and shareholders operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets. liabilitics.
income, expenscs and comprehensive gains or losses of the respective operations.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in compliance with 1'RSs, the balances and transactions of the
insurance operations arc amalgamated and combined with those of the shareholders’ operations. Inter-operation balances
and transactions are eliminated in full during amatgamation. The accounting policies adopted for the insurance operations
and shareholders operations are uniform for like transactions and cvents in similar circumstances.

(b  Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Rivals (SR). which is also the functional currency ol the Company.

(¢}  Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending 31 Diecember.

(1)  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumpftions

The preparation of financial stalements requires the use of estimates and judgments that atfect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure ol contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates and judgments arc based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually cvaluated and based on historical cxperience and other factors. including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(dy  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

JFollowing are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial statements:

i) The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance confracts

The estimation of the ultimate Hability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Cempany”s most critical
accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that nced to be considered in the estimate of the liability that
the Company will ultimately pay for such claims, Lstimates are made at the end of the reporting period both for the expected
ultimate cost of claim reported and for the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred but not reported (“1IBNR™). Liabilities
for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company. Atthe
end of each reporting period, prior period claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are made to the
provision.

The provision for IBNR is an cstimation of claims which are expecied to be reported subscquent Lo the date of staiement of
financial position, for which the insured event has occurred prior o the date of interim condensed statement of financial
position, The primary technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using
the past claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends, A range of methods such as Chain Ladder
Method. Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method and Lxpected Loss Ratio Method are used by the actuaries to determine these
provisions. The actuary has also used a segmentation approach including analyzing cost per member per year for medical
line of business. Underlying these methods are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims.

i) Impairment of investments

The Company determines that financial assets are impaired when there has been a signilicant or prolonged decline in the fair
values of the financial assets below its cost. The determination of what is “significant’ or “prolonged’ requires judgement, A
period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered
significant as per Company policy. In making this judgement. the Company evaluates. among other factors, the duration or

extent to which the fair value of an Investment is less than its cost.

i) Impairment of receivables

A provision (or impairment of reccivables is established when there is objeetive evidence that the Company will not be able
to collect all amounts duc according to the eriginal terms of the receivables. Signiticant linancial diflicultics of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankrupley or financial reorganization. and default or delinquency in pavments are
considered indicalors that the reccivable is impaired.

iv)  Fairvalue of financial instruments

Fair vatues of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values,
The fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission for ilems with
similar terms and risk characteristics.

The fair values of financiat instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are
determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of
similar financial instruments or using models, Where market observable inputs are not available. they are estimated based on
appropriate assumptions. Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values. they are validated and periodically
reviewed by qualificd personnel independent of those that sourced them. All models used are calibrated to cnsure that
outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical. models use only observable data: however,
arcas such as credit risk (both own credit risk and counterparty risk). velatilitics and correlations require management to
make estimates.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amonnts in Sandi Riyvals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

v Deferred policy acquisition costs

Certain acquisition costs related to sale of policies are recorded as deferred acquisition costs and are amortized over the
related period of policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to future profiability of these policies are not realized. the
amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment.

vi)  Premium deficiency reserve

Istimation of the premium deficiency reserve. if any. is highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the future events
and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of the risks for writien policies. To arrive at
the estimate of the expeeted loss ratio, the actuary looks at the claims and premiums relationship which is expeeted 1o be
realized in the future.

vii)  Impact of Covid-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation (*W110™) declared the Coronavirus (“*COVID-197) outbreak as a
pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. This outbreak has alse affected the GCC region including the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments all over the world took steps to comain the spread of the virus. Saudi Arabia in
particular has implemented closure of borders, released social distancing guidelines and enforced country wide lockdowns
and curlews.

In response to the spread of the Covid-19 virus in the GCC and other where the Company operates and its conseyquential
disruption 1o the social and cconomic activities in those markets, the Company’s management has proactively assessed its
impacts on its operations and has taken a series of proactive and preventative measures and processes Lo ensure:

- (he health and safety of its employees and the wider community where it is operating
- the continuity ef its business throughout the Kingdom is protected and kept intact.

The major impact of Covid-19 pandemic is seen in medical and motor line of business as explained below, As with any
estimate. the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are underpinned by significant judgment and rapidly evolving
situation and uncertaintics surrounding the duration and severity ol the pandemic, and therefore. the actual oulcomes may be
different to those projected. The impact of such uncertain cconomic environment is judgmental, and the Company will
continue to reassess its position and the related impact on a regular basis,

Medical technical reserve

Based on the management’s assessment. the management believes that the Government's decision to assume the medical
treatment costs for both Saudi citizens and expatriates has helped in reducing any unfavourable impact. During the
lockdown, the Company saw a decline in medical reported claims (majorly clective and non-chronic treatment claims) which
resulted in a drop in claims experience. However. subsequent to the lifting of lockdown since 21 June 2020, the Company is
experiencing a surge in claims which is in line with the expectations of the Company’s management. The Company’s
management has duly considered the impact of surge in claims in the current estimate of future contractual cash flows of the
insurance contracts in foree as at 31 December 2021 for its lability adequacy test. Based on the results. the Company has
booked an amount of SR 9.54 millien as a premium deficiency reserve,




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPLERATIVLE INSURANCLE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

{d}  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
vii)  Impact of Covid-19 (continued)

Motor technical reserves

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, SAMA issued @ circular 189 (the “circular™) dated 08 May 2020 1o all insurance
companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Amongst other things. the circular instructed insurance companies to extend the
peried of validity of all existing retail motor insurance policies by further two months as well as providing a two-month
additional coverage for all new retail motor policics written within one month of this circular.

The Management. in conjunction with its appointed actuary, deliberated on a variety of internal Factors and cencluded, that
the Company considers the extension of twoe months in exiting motor policies as new policy and record a premium
deficiency reserve based on the expected claims for the extended two months’ period.

For new policics written as per abeve circular. the premium is carned over the period of coverage i.e 14 month as per the
Company accounting policy,

The Company has performed a liability adequacy test using current estimates ol future cash tlows under its insurance
contracts at an aggregated (or “segmented™) level for motor line of business and recorded a Premium deficiency reserve
amounting to SR 4.58 million as at 31 December 20217,

Financial assets

To cater for any potential impacts, the Covid-19 pandemic may have had on the financial asscts of the Company. the
Company has performed an assessment in accordance with its accounting policy, lo determine whether there is an objeciive
evidence that a financial asset or a group ol financial asscts has been impaired. For debt financial asscts, these include
factors such as. significant financial difficulties of issucrs or debtors, default or delingquency in payments, probability that
the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization. ete. In case of cquities classilicd under available-
for-sale, the Company has performed an assessment to determine whether there is a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of financial asscts below their cost.

Based on these assessments. the Company’s management believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has had no material etfects
on Company’s reperted resulis Tor the year ended 31 December 2021, The Company’s management conlinucs (o monilor the
situation closely.

Credit risk management

The Company has strengthened its credit risk management pelicies to address the fast changing and evolving risks posed by
the current circumstances. These include review of eredit concentrations at the granular cconomic sector. region and
counterparty level and the Company has taken appropriate action where required. Based on the review. the Company has
identificd the certain sectors such as government contracting. airlines. retail seetor and hogpitality industry as being impacted
significantly by the Covid-19 pandemic and lower oil prices.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting poelicies applicd in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below. These
poticies have been consistently applied to cach of the vears presented. There are ne new standards issucd. however, there are
number o amendments to standards which are cftective from 1 January 2021 but they do not have a material effect on the
Company’s Financial Statements, The Company has not carly adopted any standard (interpretation) or amendments that has
been issucd but which are not vet effective.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Standards issued but not yet elfective
The Company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments and revisions to the IFRSs. which have been published and ure
mandatory tor compliance for the Company with effect fram future dates.

Effective [rom

Standard/ periods beginning on
Interpretation/ or after the following
Amendment Deseription date

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (refer below) 1-Jan-23

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (refer below) I-Jan-23

A. IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

This standard was published on 24 July 2014 and has replaced TAS 39, The new standard addresses the following items
related to financial instruments:

a. Classification and measurement:
[I'RS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost, at fair value through
cther comprehensive income or at [air value through profit or loss. A financial asset is measured at amorlized cost if both:

1. the asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is 1o hold assets in arder to eollect contractual
cash flows; and

i, the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPT™).

The financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, and realized gains or losses are recyeled
through profit or loss upon sale. if both conditions are met:

i the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and for sale:and
i the contractual erms of cash flows are SPP1

Assets not meeting cither of these categories are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Additionally. at initial
recognition. an entity can use the option o designate a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if deing so
climinates or significantly reduccs an accounting mismatch.

For cquity instruments that are not held for trading. an entity can also make an irrevoeable clection to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments (including realized gains and losses).
dividends being recognized in profit or loss.

Additionally. for financial Habilitics that are designated as at fair value through profit or Joss. the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that lability is recognized in other
comprehensive income. unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

b, Impairment:

The impairment model under TFRS 9 refllects expected credit losses. as opposed 1o incurred credit losses under 1AS 39,
Under the 1FRS 9 approach. it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognived.
Instead. an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those expected eredit losses. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at cach reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

¢ Hedge acconnting:

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for hedge accounting that glign hedge accounting more closely with Risk Management,
The requirements establish a more principles-based approach to the general hedge accounting medel. The amendments
apply 1o all hedge accounting with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk (commonly referred 1o as
“fzir value macro hedges™). For these, an entity may continue te apply the hedge accounting requirements currently in IAS
39.This exception was granted largely because the TASE is addressing macro hedge accounting as a separate project.

Efflective date

The published effective date of IFRS 9 was [st January 2018, However. amendments to [I'RS 4 — Insurance Contracts:
Applying IFRS 9 -- Financial Tnstruments with IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts, published on 12th September. 2016, changes
the existing IFRS 4 to allow enlitics issuing insurance contracts within the scope of 1°RS 4 to mitigate certain effects of
applying IFRS 9 before the JASB's new insurance contract standard {1FRS 17 — Inswance Contracts) becomes effective.
The amendments introduce two alternative options:

1. apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 until the carficrof
a. the effective datc of a new insurance contract standard: or
b. annual reporting periods beginning on or afler January 1. 2023. Additional disclosures related 1o linancial

asscts are required during the deferral period. This option is enly available to entities whose activitics arc
predominately connected with insurance and have not applied IFRS 9 previously; or

]

adept IFRS 9 but. for designated financial assets. remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting
mismatches that may occur before the new insurance centract standard is implemented.

The Compuny has performed a detailed assessment as ol reporting date:
1. The carrving amount of the Company’s labilities arising from contracts within the scope of 1FRS 4 {including deposit

components or embedded derivatives unbundled from insurance contracts) were compared to the total carrying
amount ol all its liabititics: and

o]

the total carrying amount of the Company’s lizbilities connected with insurance were compared o the total carrying
amount of all its liabilitics. Based on these assessments the Company determined that it is eligible for the temporary
exemption. Consequently, the Company has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS 9 until the effective date of
the new insurance contracls standard. Disclosures related Lo inancial assets required during the delerral period are
included in the Company’s financial statements.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
A, IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

Impact assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has total {inancial assets and insurance related assets amounting to SR 370 million
(31 December 2020: SR 603 million) and SR 639 million {31 December 2019: SR 585 million). respectively. Currently.
financial asscts held at amortized cost consist of cash and cash equivalents and certain other receivables amounting 1o SR
423 million (31 December 2020; SR 461 million). Other financial assets consist of available for sale investments amounting
o SR 1.9 million (31 December 2020: SR 1.9 million). The Company expect e use the FVOCI classification of these
linancial assets based on the business model of the Company for debt securities and strategic natwre of equity investments.
1owever, the Company Is yet to perform a detailed assessment to determine whether the debt securities meet the SPPI test as
required by IFRS 9. Investment in Tunds classified under available for sale investments will be at FVS] under IFRS 9. Other
inancial assets have 2 laic valoe of SR 92 million as at 31 December 2021 with a fair value change during the year of SR
2.1 million.

The Company financial assets have low credit risk as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, The above is based on
high-level impact asscssnent of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently available information and may be
subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and suppertable information being made
available to the Company in the future. QOverall, the Company expects some effect of applying the impairment requirements
ol IFRS 9: However, the impact of the same is not expected to be significant. At present it is not possible to provide
reasonable estimate of the cffects of application of this new standard as the Company is vet to perform a detailed review.,

B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Conftracts

Overview
This standard has been published in May, 2017, It establishes the principles for the recognition. measurement. presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes [FRS 4 — [nsurance contracts.

The new standard applies 1o insurance contracts issued. to all reinsurance contracts and to investment contracts with
discretionary participating features, provided the entity also issues insurance contracts, [t requires to separate the following
compenents from insurance contracts:

i embedded devivatives, i they meet certain specified criteria:
ii distinct investment components: and
iii any promise to transter distinet goods or non-insurance serviees.

These components should be accounted tor separately in accordance with the related standards (IFRS @ and IFRS 135).

Measurement
In contrast 1o the requirements in IFRS 4. which permitted insurers to continue to use the accounting policies for
measurement purposes that existed prior to January 2015, [FRS 17 provides the following difTerent measuremnent models:

The General Measurement Model (GMM) is based on the following “building blocks™

a. the fullilment cash Nows (FCF). shich comprise:
+  probability-weighted cstimates of future cash flows.
« an adjustment to reflect the time value of money (e, discounting) and the linancial risks associated with those
luture cash llews, and
+ arisk adjustment for non-tinancial risk:
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {(continued)
Measurement - continued

b. the Contractual Service Margin (CSM) - The CSM represents the uncarned profit for a group of insurance contracts
and will be recognized as the entity provides services in the future, The CSM cannot be negative at inception: any net
negative amount of the fulfilment cash {lows at inception will be recorded in profit or loss inmediately.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period. the carrying amount of a group of insuranee contracts is re-measured (o be
the sum of?

»  the lability for remaining coverage, which comprises the FOT refated to future servives and the CSM of the group at
that dute; and

« the lability for incurred claims, which is measurcd as the 'CI related to past services allocated to the group at that
date.

The CSM is adjusted subsequently for changes in cash flows related to future services, Since the CSM cannot be negative,
changes in luture cash fiows that arc greater than the remaining CSM are recognized in profit or loss.

The elfect of changes in discount rates will be reported in cither profit or loss or other comprehensive income, determined
by an accounting policy choice.

‘The Variable Fee Approach (VFA) is a mandatory model for measuring contracts with direct participation featurcs (also
referred to as “dircct participating contracts’). ‘This assessment of whether the contract meets these criteria is made at
inception of the contract and not reassessed subsequently. For these contracts. in addition to the adjustment under GMM. the
CSM is also adjusted for:

i the entity’s share of the changes in the [air value of underlying items ,
Ii. the effect of changes in the time value of money and in financial risks not relating to the underlying items.

[n addition, a simplified Premium Allocation Approach (PAA}Y is permitted Jor the measurement of the liability for
remaining coverage if it provides a measurcment that is not materially different from the General Measurement Madel for
the group of contracts or if the coverage period for each contract in the group is one year or less. With the PAA. the liability
for remaining coverage corresponds to premiums received at intial recognition less insurance acquisition cash flows. The
General Measurement Model remains applicable for the measurement ol the lability for incurred claims. However. the
entity is not required to adjust future cash Nows for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk it those cash
tlows are expected 1o be paid/received in one year or less from the date the claims are incurred.

Effective date

The TASD issued an Exposure Draft Amendments to [FRS 17 proposing certain amendments to [IFRS 17 during June 2019
and received comments from various stakeholders. The IASB is currently re-deliberating issues raiscd by stakehelders. For
any proposed amendments 1o 1FRS 17, the IASE will follow ils normal due process for standard-setting. The effective date
o 1ERS 17 and the deferral of the IFRS 9 temporary exemption in [FRS 4 is currently | January 2021, Under the current
exposure drafl. it is propused 1o amend the IFRS 17 effective dale to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,
Further. an 17 March 2020, the (JAS13) completed its discussions on the amendments to 1FRS 17 and decided that the
effective date of the Standard will be deterred to reporting periods beginning on or afler 01 January 2023, Larlicr
application is permitted if both IFRS 135 — Revenue [rom Contracts with Customers and [FRS 9 — Financial Instruments have
also been applied. The Company intends to apply the Standard on its effective date.

20



SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amonnts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)

B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (continued)

Transition

Retrospective application is required. However, it

full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is

impracticable. then the entity is required to choose cither a moditied retrospective approach or a fair value approach.

Presentation and Disclosures

The Company expects that the new standard will result in a change 1o the accounting policies for insurance contracts and
reinsurance. [and investment contracts with discretionary participating features. if applicable] together with amendments Lo

presentation and disclosures.

Impact

The Company has performed an initial impact assessment of the application and implementation of IFRS 17, As of the date
of the publication of these financial statements, the final {inancial impact of adopting the standard has yet to be fully
assossed by the Company. The Company has undertaken an initial operational impact gap analysis and currently undergoing

through detailed operatienal and financial impact assessment. Key gaps and their impact are as follows:

Impact Area

Summary of Impact

Financial Impact

The Company has ascertained the financial impact on reported
balances of year 2018, As the Company's maost of insurance contracts
are short-termed and short tailed entitling for premium allocation
approach (PAA) which is largely similar to current account practice.
no significant impact is expected. The Company has also successfully
finalized the reassessment of 2020 results as part of the Ist Dry-Run
orchestrated by the regulator and submitted on 30 November 2021 to
SAMA.

Based on the conducted simulation. the {inancial impact of applying
IFRS 17 compared to IFRS 4 was also not significant. The Company
will solidify its view on the financial impact while completing the Znd
and 3rd dry-runs, planned before the end of 2022,

Data impact

IFRS 17 has additional data requirements (¢.g. premium due date for
initial recognition, premium receipt data for the LFRC. RI contracts
held breakdown in to risk attaching or loss incurring for assessing
contract boundarics. lower granularity to meet level of aggregation
requirements and data for additional disclosures as per IFRS 7).
Further extensive exercise has carried out fo ensure the required data
is available.

No major data deficiencics or shortfalls were reperied during the
completion of the 1st drv-run simulation.

[T svstems impact

Detailed  assessment has been carried out of existing  systems
capabilities for 1FRS 17 caleulations. storage and reporting and
whether new systems / caleulation engines should be implemented.
The tool has been implemented suceesstully and used for processing
and extracting the simulated results for the Ist dry-run. In
coordination with the Company’s appointed adviser and appointed
actuary. the Stecring Committee 15 actively working o close any
identified paps before the due date of the 2nd dry-run simulation,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i3 IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {(continued)

Impact (continued)

Process impact

The company has carricd out an operational impact assessment
exercise o assess the operational impact of implementing JFRS 17
Since. majority of the company”s contracts would be measured under
the premium allocation approach. the process impact is expected to be
moderate.

No major process impact was reperted during the completion of the
Tst dey-run simulation.

Impact on Reinsurance arrangements

lPurther assessnient has carried out to conlirm measurement approach
for reinsurance arrangements where RI gross premium ceded does not
awtomatically qualify for PAA.

Impact on policies and control frameworks

The Company's policies and procedures needs updating  to
accommodate the changes in the Company's processes and systems
related to IFRS 17 implementation. Detailed exercise for the purpose
has been carried out after ascertaining financial and operational gaps
AS5CSSMENL

The Company is currently in design phasc of 1FRS 17 implementation which requires developing and designing new
> K g £ning

processes and procedures for the business including any system developments required under TFRS 17 and detailed

assessment of business requirements. Following are the main areas under design phase and status of the progress is as

follows:

Major areas of design phase

Summary of progress

Gevernance and contrel [ramework

The Company has put in place a comprehensive IFRS 17 governance
program which includes establishing oversight steering committee for
monitoring the progress of implementation and assigning roles and
responsibilities to various stakeholders.

Operational arca

The Company is in progress of designing operational aspects of the
design phase which includes establishing comprehensive data policy
and data dictionary. Also the Company is finalizing architectural
designs for various sub-systems. The Company has propressed
through assessment of business requirements and currently working
on vendor selection while finalizing various process needed for
transition and assessiment ol new resourees needed.

Technical and financial arca

The Company has completed various policy papers encompassing,
various technical and financial matters after concluding on policy
decisions required under the IFRS 17 standard. The policy decisions
are taken after duc deliberations among various  stakeholders.
Currently majority of policy papers have been approved by the
Company's 1I'RS 17 project steering commitlee,

Assurance plan

The Company is working along with other stakchelders to finalize the
assurance plan for transitional and post-implementation periods.

The Company has started its implementation precess and has set up a project team, supervised by Company's CEO.
Furthermore. to assess financial and operational impact of 1IFRS-17. the Company has hired Deloitle & Touche Advisory

Saudi Limited (Deloite) as their consultants.

The effective interpretations/improvementamendments do nat have material impact on thege financial statements of' the

company.
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R) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

‘T'he significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are st out below have been consistently
applied unless otherwise mentioned:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks including murabaha deposits with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition.

Murabaha deposits

Murabaha deposits. with original maturity of more than three months. are initially recognised in the statement of financial
position at fair valuc and are subscquently measured at amortised cost using cflective interest method, less any impairement
in value, whereas deposits with maturities not exceeding three months are reported under cash and cash equivalents,

Premiums and reinsurers' receivable - net

Premiums receivable are stated at gross wrilten premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an allowance for any
uncollectihle amounts. Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised when due and measured on initial
recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for
impairment and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. the impairment
loss is recerded in “General and administrative expenses™ in the statement of income. Receivable balances are derecognised
when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the receivable balance. which is normally the case
when the receivable balance is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the balance are passed through te an independent
third party. Receivable balances are disclosed in note 6 fall under the scope of IFRS-1 "Insurance Contract”,

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions and other costs directly and indirectly related to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are
deferred and amortized over the terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate as premiums are earned. Amortization
is recorded in the statement of income, as policy acquisition costs.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of fiture cconomic benefits embodicd in the
asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at cach financial reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises. When the recoverahte amounts arc less than the carrving value, an impairment loss is recognived in the statement of
income. Deferred policy acquisition cost is also considered in the liability adequacy test for cach financial reporting period.

Liability adequacy test

At each statcnient of linancial position date. liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contracts labilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these tests management uses current hest
estimates of Juture contractual cash 1lows and claims handling and administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying
amounts is immediately charged (o the statement of income by cstablishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests accordingly. Where the liability adeguacy test requires the adoplion of new best estimate’s assumptions. such
assumplions (without margins for adverse deviation) are used for the subsequent measurement of these liabilities.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition

Finaneial assets are recognized in the Company”s financial statements when the Company becomes a party 10 the contractual
provisions ol the instrument. Iinancial assets are recognized initdally at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the
initial measurement of the Company s financial assets exeept in case of financial assets at fair value threugh profit or toss.
Company's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents. murabaha deposits. receivables. held-to-maturity investments
and available-for-sale investiments.

T~
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specificd catcgories: loans and reccivables. available-for-sale and held to
maturity financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery

of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace,

b.

o

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in
an active markel are classified as loans and receivables, Aflter initial recognition. loans and reccivables are
subsequently mcasured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impuirment and are included in
current assets, except for maturities preater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Available-Tor-sale investments (“AFS™) arc non-derivative financial assets that are not classilied as loans and
receivables, held 1o maturity investment or financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the AFS financial asset are recognized in other comprehensive income. AIS cquily investment that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value through profit or loss (“*FVTPL™} arc non-derivative [inancial assets that are held for trading. All
derivatives (except those designated hedging instruments) and financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of
selling in the short term or for which there is a recent pattern of short-term profit taking are held for trading.

Held-to-maturity investments are investments which have fixed or determinable payments that the Company has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are subscquently measured at amartized cost. less provision [or
impairment in value, Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition. Any
gain or loss on such investments is recognized in the statements of income when the investment is derecognized or
impaired.

Impairment and un-collectability of financial assets
The Company assesses. al cach reporting date. whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group ol

financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists i one or nore events that hay occurred sinee the initial recognition of the
assel (an incurred “loss event™) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assct or the group off

financial asscts that can be reliably estimated.

ILvidence of impairment may include:

- Significant financial difticulty of the issuer or debtor:

- A breach of contract, such as a defanlt or delinguency in payinents:

- It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization:

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial assct because of financial difficultics: or

- Observable data indicating that there is @ measurable decrease in the estimated future cash low from a group of’
financial asscts since the initial recognition of those assets. although the decrease cannot yet be identified with

the individual financial assets in the Company. including:

» adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors in the Company: or
= national or loca!l cconomic conditions at the country of the issuers that correlate with defauls on the asses,

I there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset exists. the impairment is determined as follows:

- For assets carried at tair value, impairment is the signiticant or prolong decline in the fair value ot the financial asset.
- For assets carried at amortized cost. impairment is based on estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the

original effective commission rate.

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses al vach reporting date whether there is objective evidence that

an investnient or a group ol investments is impaired.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Impairment and un-collectibility of financial assets {continued)

In the case of debt instruments classilied as available-for-sale. the Company assesses individually whether there is an
ghjective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence may include indications that the borrower is experiencing significant
financial difticulty. default or delinquency in special commission income or prineipal payments. the probability that it will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where ehservable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows. such as changes in economic conditions that correlate with defaults. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement of income and statement of
comprehensive income. If; in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objcetively related to credit event oceurring alter the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of income and
stalement ¢l comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income and statement of
comprehensive income.

For equity investments held as available-for-sale. a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its cost represents
objective evidence of impairment. The impairment lass cannot be reversed through stalement of income as long as the asset
continues to be recognised i.c. any increase in fair value afler impairment has been recorded can only be recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derccognition, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprchensive
income is included in the statement of income under “Realized gain / {loss) on Investments available for sale investments”.

The determination of what is “signilicant” or “prolonged’ requires judgement. A period of 12 months or longer is considered
1o be prolonged and a decline of 30% from ariginal cost is considered significant as per Company policy. In making this
judgement. the Company evaluates. among other factors. the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is

less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt instrument is impaired, the Company considers ihe factors such
as markeUs assessment of creditworthiness as retlected in the bond viclds, rating agencies” assessment of creditworthiness.
country’s ability 1o access the capital markets lor new debt issuance and probability of debt being restructured. resulting in
helders suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgivencss. The amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the differcnce between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of income and statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilitics are recognized in the Company’s financial statements when the Cempany becomes a party o the
contractual provisions ol the instrument. Iinancial liabilitics are initiaily recognized at fair value. Transaction costs arc
included in the ini

ial measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Since the Company does net have tinancial liahilities classified at Fair value through Profit or loss. all financial liabilitics are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. with interest expense recognized on an
ctfective vield basis.

Derecognition of financial instruments

I'he derecopnition of & linancial instrument takes place when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights that
comprise the financial instrument. which is normally the case when the instrument is seld. or all the cash flows atributable
10 the instrumient are passed through to an independent thivd party.
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R SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offseiting

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offSet and the net amount reported in the statement of tinancial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis. or
to realize the assets and settle the liabilitics simultancously, Income and expense will not be offset i the statements of
income and comprehensive income unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpreiation. as specitically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

Fair values

The fair value of financial asscts that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted
market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business on the financial reporting date, I quoted
market prices are not available. reference is made to broker or dealer price quotations.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such technigues
include using recent aravs-length transactions, relerence Lo the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same and/or discounted cash flow analysis. For discounted cash flow technigues. estimated future cash
flows are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate used is a market related rate for similar assets.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yel incurred but already paid in cash, Prepayments are initially recorded as assels and
measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently. these are charged 1o staiements of inceme as they are consumed or
expire with the passage of time.

Property and cquipment

Property and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impainment lesses. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrving amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, only when it is probable that [uture
cconemic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged 10 the statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred.
The cost of other items of property and cquipment is depreciated on the straight line method o allocate the cost over
cstimated useful lives. as follows:

Years
[.easehold improvements Shorter of 3 or the relevant lease term
Furniture and fittings 10
Computer and office equipment 3-3
Vehicles 3

The assets” residual values. depreciation and vseful lives are reviewed al cach reperting date and adjusted if appropriate,
The carrying values of these assels are reviewed for impairment when event or changes In circumstances indicate that the
carrving value mav not be recoverable. I any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount. the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined hy comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in
“Oither income™ in the statement o income.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress includes property that is being developed for future use. When commissioned. capital work-in-
progress will be transferred 1o the respective category within property and eyuipment, and depreciated in accordance with
the Company s policy.

Intangibles assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortzation and impairment. it any. Amortization is provided over the
estimated usetul lives of the applicable intangible assets using the straight line method. The estimated uselul lives of the

a

intangible asset are hetween 3 to 5 years.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continucd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AN amounty in Surdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

R) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Statutory deposit
The statutery deposit. which is cqual to 10% of the Company’s paid up capital. consisted mainly ot murabaha deposit
maintained at a local bank in compliance with SAMA requirement.

Accrued and other liabilities
Acerued and other Habilities are recognized for ameunts to he paid in the future for goods and services. whether billed by
the supplier or not.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past cvent, and the
cosis 10 settle the obligation are both probable and can be measured reliably.

Employees' end-ol-service benefits

The Company operates an end-ol-service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Suudi Labor Laws. Accruals
are made at the present vatue of expected Tuture payments in respect of services provided by the emplovees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and petieds ot service. Expected future payments are discounted using market vields at
the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closcly as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows. The benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due, Remeasurements
(actuarial gains/ losses) as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits. include leave pay and airfare. ave current liabilities included in accrued expenses. measured at
the undiscounted amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Employees' end-of-service bencfits
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian emplovees to the General Organization for Social
[nsurance. This represents a statc-owned delined contribution plan. The payments made are expensed as incurred.

Zakat and tax

In accordance with the regulations of the Zakal. Tax and Customs Authority (the "ZATCA"). the Company is subject 1o
zakat attributable to the Saudi sharcholders and 1o income tax attributable to the foreign shareholders. Provisien for zakat
and income tax is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Additional amounts payable. it any. at the linalization of final
assessments are accounted Tor when such amounts are determined. Zakat is computed on the Saudi sharcholders' share of
equity and? or net income using the basis defined under the regulatiens of ZATCA, Income tax is computed on the foreign
sharcholders' share of net income for the vear.

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions with nen-resident parties. including dividend paviments to foreign
sharcholders. in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Inceme Tax Law. Withholding taxes paid on
behall of non-resident partics. which are not recoverable (rom such parties, are expensed.

Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Cempany’s by-laws. the Company shall allocate 20% of its retained carnings cach yvear 1o the
starutery reseryve until it has built up a reserve equal o the share capital, The reserve is not available for distribution.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized/derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales ol financial assets
that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO TIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Insurance contracts

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the
insurer aceepts significant insurance risk Irom the policyholder by agrecing o compensate the policyholder if & specified
uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline. the Company defines significant insurance
risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the accurrence of an insured event that are at least 10% more than the
Lenefits pavable if the insured event did not oceur.

Revenue Recognition

Recognition of premivm and commission revenue

Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of income based on straight line method over the insurance pelicy
coverage period except for long term polices (engineering and marine).

Unearned premiums are caleutated on a straight line method over the insurance policy coverage except lor:

- Marine - Last three months premium at a reporting date is considered as uncarned.

- Engineering - as per the guidelines provided by SAMA. pre-defined caleulation for risks undertaken that extend beyond a
single year. In accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are carned in the first year which gradually increases
towards the end of the tenure ol the policy; and

Unearned premiums represent the pertion of premiums written relating 1o the unexpired period of coverage. The change in
the provision for uncarned premium is taken to the statement of income in the same order that revenue is recognised over the
period of risk,

Unearned commission on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the terms of the insurance
contracts to which they relate. Amortization is recorded in the statement of income.

Investment income
Investment income classified under held-to-maturity investments and murabaha deposits are accounted for on an effective
interest hasis.

Dividend income
Dividend income. if any. on equily instruments classified under available-Tor-sale investments is recognived when the right
to receive payment is established.

Claims
Claims consist of amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses. net of salvape
and other recoverics.

Gross outstanding claims comprise gress estimated cost of elaims incurred but not setiled af the reporting date together with
related elaims handling costs. whether reparted or not, Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the financial reporting
date are made on the basis of individual case cstimates.

In additicn. a provision based cn management’s judement and the Company”™s prior experience is maintained for the cost of
settling 1BNR as of financial reporting date, The uliimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amount provided. Any
difference between the provisions at the reperting date and settlements and provisions in the following year is included in
the statement of income for that vear.

The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share ol the reinsurers is shown separately.

Further. the Company dees not discount its liabilitics for unpaid claims as substantially alt claims are expected Lo be paid
within one vear of the tinancial reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

(All amounts in Sawdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Salvage and subrogation reimbursement

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell {usually damaged) assets acquired in settling @ claim (for cxample,
salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example.
subrogation}. Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims
liability, The allowance is the amount that ean reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the assct.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurenent ol the outstanding claims liability. The
aliowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered Irom the third party.

Reinsurance contracts ceded

Reinsurance contracts are contracts enfered into by the Company with reinsurers during the normal course of business under
which the Company is compensaled for losses on insurance contracts issued. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for
greater diversification of business. allows management o control exposure to potential losses arising [rom large risks, and
provide additional capacity for growth, Reinsurance is distributed between treaty, facultative, stop loss and excess of loss
reinsurance contract.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts ceded are recognized as reinsurance assets in
the insurance operations’ assets. Lhese asscls consist of balances due [rom reinsurers on settlement of claims and other
receivables such as proiit commissions and reinsurers’ share of cutstanding claims that are dependent on the expected claims
and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contract. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
recognized consistently with the amounts associated with the underlying insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance asscts or liabilities are derccognized when the contractual rights arc
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

At each financial reporting date. the Company assesses whether there is any indication that a reinsurance asset may be
impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists. the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the
carrying amount of a reinsurance asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writlen down
10 its recoverable amount, Impainment is recognized in the statement of income,

Ceded reinsurance arangements do not relicve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims on
assumed reinsurance are recognized as income and expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were
considered direet business. taking into account the product classilication of the reinsured business.

Expense recognition

Jixpenses are recognized in statements ol income when decrease in future economic benefit related 1o a decrease in an assct
or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliahly. Expenses are recognized in statements of income on the
basis ol a dircct association between the costs incurred and the carning of specilic items of income: on the basis of
systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benelits are expected to arise over the accounting period.
Expenses in the stateinent of income are presented using the nature of expense method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful lite are not subject o depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject 1o depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in cireumstances indicate that the
carrving amount may not be recoverable.

An irpaiment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, For the purposc of assessing
impairment. assets are grouped ar the lowest level for which there are separawely ideniiliable cash tlows (cash-generating
units).
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated}

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-usc asset and & lease liability except for:
» Leases of low valuc assels; and

» Lcases with a term of 12 months or less.

Lease labilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor ever the lease tenm. with the
discount rate determined by reference o the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the ease) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Company’s incremental commission rate on commencement of the lease is used. Yariable
lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cascs.
the initial measurement of the lease Hability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the peried to which they relate.

Qn initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

+ amounts expected 1o be payable under any residual value guarantee:

+ the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Company il'it is reasonable certain o asscss
that option;

« any penaltics payable for terminating the lease. i the term of the fease has been estimated on the basis of
termination option being exercised.

Right of use asscts are initially measured at the amount of the lease Lability, reduced for any lease incentives received. and
increased for:
+ lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease:
« initial direct costs incwrred: and
« the amount of any provision recognised where the Company is contractually required te dismantle, remove or
reslore the leased asset (typically leasehold dilapidations.

Subscquent to initial measurement lease liabitities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-ol-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining cconomic life of the asset if. rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the
lease term.

When (he Company revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example. it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised). it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term. which are discounted at the same discount rate that applied on lease
commencement. The carrving value of lease liabilitics is similarly revised when the varigble clement of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index is revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset. with the revised carrving amount being amortised over the remaining {(revised) lease term,




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME
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(Al amounts in Sandi Rivaly unless otherwise stated)

I'S (continued)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the Company”s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Rivals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics are retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All difterences are taken to the statements of incame. Non-monetary
items that are measurcd in ternms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date
of the initial transaction and are not subscquently restated.

Operating Segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is enpaged in providing products or services (a business
seament), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of ether segments. For management purposes.
the Company is organized into business units based on products and services and has cight reporizble operating segments
and one non-opcerating reportable segment as follows:

» Medical insurance provides health care cover to policyholders.

« Motor Insurance provides coverage against losses and liability related 1o motor vehicles. excluding ransport
insurance.

* Iire and burglary insurance provides coverage against {ire. and any other insurance included under this class
ol insurance.

+ Marine Insurance provides cover for Marine Cargo in transit and ships against marine perils.

« Engincering Insurance provides coverage for Joss or damage Lo construction works or erection and installation
ol plant & machinery.

« Public liability insurance provides cover for legal liability of the insured against third parties arising out of
premises. business operations or projects handled.

» General aceident insurance provides coverage against accidental death e individual and group of partics
under Personal Accident Insurance.

+ Others provide coverage lor workmen compensation.

Operating scgnients are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief eperating decision-maker. who is responsible Tor allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. has been identified as the chief exccutive officer that makes stratcgic decisions.

Shareholders” FFunds is 2 non-operating segment. Inceme carned [rom murabaha deposits is its only revenue generating
activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are aliocated to this scgment on an apprepriate

Seement performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which. in certain respeets, is measared differently from profit er
loss in the financial statements.

No inter-segnient ransactions occurred during the vear. [ any transaction were to oceur. transter prices between eperating
segments are set on an arm’s kength basis in a manner similar 1o transactions with third partics. Segment income. expense
and results will then include those transfers between operating segments which will then be eliminated at the level of
financial stateruents of the Company. As the Company carries out its activities entively in the Kingdom ol Saudi Arabia.
reporting is provided by operating sepments only.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SFATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AN amounts in Sawdi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following

Cash in banks
Cash on hand

Cash in banks are placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standurd and Poor’s and Moody’s ratings methodology

R MURABATA DEPOSITS

202] 2020
52,014,680 49 984,698
13,749 15,029

52028429

49.999 727

Murabaha deposits represents deposits with local banks that have investment grade credit ratings and have an original maturity of more than three
months from date of acquisition. The deposits carn comnission at rate ranging from 0.8% to 3.4% (31 December 20200 1 2% to 3 4%) per annum.

6 PREMITNMS AND REINSURERS' RECEIVABLE - NET

Receivables comprise amounts due from the followms:

Policvholders

Brokers and agents

Related parties (note 20)
Receivables from remsurers

Less

Provision tor doubtful recetvables - policyholders

Provision for doubtful receivables - brokers and agents
Provision for doubtiul receivables - related parties (note 20)
Provision for doubtful receivables - recervables from reinsurers

Asat 31 December. the aging of receivables is as follows:

Policyhelders

Brokers and agents

Related parties

Receivables from reinsurers
2021

Policyholders

Brokers and agents

Related parties

Receivables from reinsurers
2020

W21

2020

155,485,361
70,716,931
79,816,404
27,688,737

184.863.153
63.219.101
38.876.953
13,622,811

333,707,433

320,582,018

(31,395,125)
{18,633,883)
(16,516,338)

(5,350,314)

(37.303.691)
(14.945.722)
(19.632.503)

{2.627.906)

(72,295,662)

(74.709.832)

261 411,771

245.872.196

Past due but not impaired

Past due and impaired

Less than 34

More than

The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables is as tollows:

Balance at Junuary 1

Provision made during the vear

Bad debts written-oft
Balance at December 31

Total davs 31-60days 61 -90davs 91 - 18 days 181 - 360 davs 360 days
135,485,361 61,282,437 35,792,467 10,811,017 7,528,939 5,347,771 34,722,710
70,716,931 29,560,801 6,327,162 3,681,513 ¢,354,841 6,194,520 18,598,094
79,816,404 14,448,816 10,831,265 16,806,710 8,264,050 12,032,582 17,432,981
27,688,737 2,076,047 1,064,234 4,666,423 3215,03 4,922,205 6,744,125
333,707,433 107,368,101 54,015,128 10965,663  25.363,553 28,497,078 77497910
184,863,153 387370391 50.017.896 26722337 11.895.767 17409 218 40047 544
63.219.101 30.843.089 2338036 3.313.300 5.604 433 3.864.287 17.255.934
58.876.933 16.060.786 2,189,954 3.535.818 4,840.639 10.561,796 21 687.940
13622811 1.501.768 1.OOY. 182 3,102,539 2201188 2,590 854 3.137.260
320,582,018 87.176.034 53.5335.0068 36.734.011 24,342 049 31:126.155 82.148.698
2021 2020
74,709,822 T0.676.167
9,344,168 1033355
(11,758,328) -
72,295,662 74,719 822

The Company onlsy enters intay insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized, credinworthy third parties. Itis the Company’s policy that all

customers who wish to vade on eredit terms are subject o credit venitication procedures. In additon, receivables are monitored on an ongoing

hasis in order 1o reduce the Company’s expesure 10 bad debts

The five largest customers accounis tor 1995 of the receivable as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 20260 2795)
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AN amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

7  MOVEMENT IN OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, UNEARNED PREMIUMS, UNEFARNED REINSURANCE
COMMISSION AND DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS (continued)

d) Deferred policy acquisition costs

2021 2020
Ralance at January 1 18,459,055 16,877.051
Incurred during the year 65,712,766 59.818.818
Amortized during the year {61,085,624) (38.236.514)
Ralance at December 31 23,086,197 18,459,055

8 INVESTMENTS

{a) Available-for-sale investments

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, Available-for-sale investment represents SR L9 million in respect of the
Company’s share in the capital of Najm for Insurance Services Company ("Najm™) which represents a 3.83% capital

holding in Najm.

(1) Fair value through profit or loss investments

2021 2020
Balance at January 1 90,028,540 90.671.601
Acquired during the year 107,351 -
Unrealized gain/(loss) from change in fair value 2,111,471 (643.061)
Balance at December 31 92,247,362 50.028.540

As at 31 December 2021, Fair value through profit or loss investments represents SR 92.23 million (31 December 2020
SR 90 millien) in respect ol quoted equity instruments of Saudi listed companies.

(¢} Held-to-maturity investment

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s investment in Islamic bonds ("Sukuk™). issued by a tocal bank having a credit
rating of "AA", amounted to SR 75 mitlion (31 December 2020: SR 335 million) comprising of 75 Sukuk (31 Becember
2020: 33 Sukuk) denominated at Saudi Riyals 1 million cach and a margin equivalent to 6 month SIBOR plus 193 basis
points (31 December 2020: 6 month SIBOR plus 193 basis points). having maturity date of 27 May 2025,

2021 2020
Balance at January 35,531,657 10.192 936
Additions 40,000,000 23.000,000
Amortisation, net 410,981 338.721
Batance at December 31 75,942,638 35,531,657
9 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 2021 2020
Recoverable expenses from reinsurers 41,822,779 31.008.578
Guarantee deposits 1,346,743 3.403.098
Accrued income from manafeth tund 4,269,430 8.237.902
Medical insurance 323,749 611.323
Fmployees” receivables 3,568,135 3.205.585
Accrued interest income [rom murabaha deposits 5,463,039 47935356
Excess of loss premium 1,856,457 1.053.090
Advance for IT operational expenses 2,529,557 2.437.851
Rentals 1,018,558 588.200
Receivable from hospitals 3,195471 -
Others 3,743,665 2.968.717
72,137,583 38.309.900
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amournts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

1l STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit represents 10% of the pald up share capital which is maintained in accordance with the Law on
Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies implemented in the Kingdom ot Saudi Arabia. The statutory deposit
caunot be withdrawn without the consent of SAMA. The statutory deposit is placed with a counterparty having investment
grade credit rating. Return on statutory deposit is shown as an asset and liability in the statement of financial position.

12 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITILES

Nole 2021 2020

Payable o hospitals - 936,954
Commission payable 26,738,459 24 482,391
Amaounts due to related parties 20 42,846,342 10.295,082
Value Added Tax payable 13,549,435 11.839.610
Inspection and supervision fees 1,025,329 3,330,735
Accrued salaries and employees' benefits 41,531 45,832
Surveyors payable 3,324,285 1.186.,402
Payable to workshops 69,017 632,140
Accrued professional lees 198,380 13,327
Others 9,807,570 11,934,524
97,600,348 64.916,997

13 SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION PAYABLE

The movement in Surplus distribution payable during the vearis as follows:

2021 2020
Opening surplus distribution payable as at | January 5,577,137 -
Total income attributed to the insurance operatiens during the year - 5577137
Surplus paid to policy holders (5,577,137) -
Closing surplus distribution payable as at 31 December - 5.577.137

14 EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company eperates a delined benefit plan for its emplovees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Law. Accruals are
made in accordance with the actuarial valuation under the prajected unit credit methed while the benelit payments
obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position and
movement in the oblipation during the year based on its present value are as follows:

2021 2020
Present value of detined benefit obligation 23,938.250 18,703,930
Movement of defined benefit obligation 2021 2020
Balance at January | 18,705,950 15.082.288
Current service cost 4,434,715 3.704.750
Interest cost 581,275 333140
Actuarial loss on remeasurement 1,134,479 1 438.651
Pavment of benefits during the vear (918,169) {2.072.879)
Balance at December 31 23,938,250 18.705.950
Principal actuarial assumptions 2021 2020
Valuation discount rate 2.5% 3.2%
Lxpected rate of inercase in salary fevel across ditferent age bands 0% 3%
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUD] JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2021

(Al amounts in Sandi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

14 EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benelit obligation is as follows:

2021 2020

Valuation discount rate

- Increase by 1% (1,544,486) (1.142.941)

- Decrease by 1% 1,780,248 1.316.605
Fxpected rate of inerease in salary level acress diflerent age bands :

- Increase by 1% 1,726,120 1,279.313

- Decrease by 1% (1,531,427} (1.134.736)
Mortality ratc

- Increase by 20% (5,937) (3.225)

- Decrease by 20% 5,951 3.231
Employee wrnover

- [nerease by 20% (723,039) (481.870)

- Decrease by 20% 804,383 521122

15 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT
) Charge for the year
The zakat payable by the Company has been calculated in accordance with the zakat regulations in Saudi Arabia.

The zakat provision for the year is based on the following:

2021 2020

Shareholders™ equity and opening provisions 449,870,863 39:4.483.730
Book value of tong term assets and statutory deposit {127,740,796) (40.345.434)
322,130,067 353.938.302

Adjusted income for the year (38,246,084) 56,510,338
Zakat base 283,883,983 410,448,640
Zakat due at 2.3% 7,097,100 10.261.216

The difference between the financial and vakaiable resuits is mainly duc to provisions which are not allowed in the
caleulation of zakatable income. The Company is not subject to income tax being fully owned by Saudi and GCC
sharcholders.

b) Zakat payable
The movement in zakat payable during the year were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of the year 10,517,581 9.047.92.4
Charge for the year 7,097,100 10.261.216
Payments during the year (9,198,273) {8.791.359)
Halance at end ol the vear 8,416,408 10.517.581

¢) Status of assessments

The Company has filed its vakat return for the financial years up o and including the year 2020 with the ZATCA and
received the tinal zakat certificate from the ZATCAL

The Company has received final assessments for the yvears 2008 through 2019 with no additional 7akat lability.




SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(AN amounts in Sandi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

16 SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized. issucd and paid up capital of the Company was SR 300 million at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
SR 300 million) consisting of 30 million shares (31 December 2020: 30 million shares} of SR 10 each. Sharcholding

structure of the Company is as below:

2021 2020
Authorised, issued and paid up Authorised. 1ssucd and paid up
No. of Shares SR000 No. of Shares SRT000
Saudi Arabian Insurance Company 13.5.C 9,000,000 90,000,000 9.000.000 90,000,000
(Mhers 21,000,000 210,000,000 21.000.000 210.000.000
30,000,000 300,000,000 30.000.000 300.000.000

17 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNING PER SHARFE

Basic and diluted {loss)/carning per share for the vear have been caleulated by dividing the total (lossYincome attributable to

the sharcholders afier zakat by the weighted average number of shares in issue throughout the period.

Total (loss)/earning for the ¥car attributable o
the sharcholders after zakat

Weighted average number of shares throughout
the period (thousands)

Basic and diluted (loss)/earning per share

There are no diluted potential shares during the vear ended 31 Decenber 2021 and 2020

18  STATUTORY RESERYE

2021 2020

(62,634,679) 47.322.351
30,000 30,000
(2.09) 1.58

[n accordance with the Company’s By-faws and in compliance with Article 70(2)(g) of the Insurance Implementing
Regulations issued by SAMA, the Company is reguired 1o allocate 20% of'its net income for the vear to the statutory reserve
until it equals the value of share capital. Such transfer is only made al vear end, The statutory reserve is not available for

distribution to sharcholders until liquidation of the Company.

19 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Note
Sularies and benetits
IT operational expenses
Depreciation 11}
Amortisation 10

Rent

Communications

Audit fees

lepal and professional fees
Printing and stationery
Repairs and maintenance
Travel

Collectors” fees
Withholding tax
Subseription fees

Others

2021 2020
98,076,372 82.473.472
5,597,940 5.166.442
1,447,112 2.098.099
1,687,966 1.876.845
2,660,126 2.507.271
1,508,699 1.875.466
607,187 385.167
2,572,591 2.351.520
194,154 280.654
393,060 323.303
379,351 234.832
327,700 73.625
184,633 879.805
359,221 343.370
0,323,005 4.677.322
122,319,117 105,749,193
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVLE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continucd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(A amorots in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated}

23  RISK MANAGEMENT
The risks fzced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below:

Risk Governance
The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of cstablished policies, procedures and controls which uses the
existing organizational structure to meet stralegic targets, The Company’s philosophy revelves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic plan approved by the Board of Directors,
The Company is exposed o insurance risk, reinsurance risk. special commission rate risk. credit risk. liquidity risk. currency
risk. market price risk, capital management regulatory framework risk and operational risk.

a. Risk management struclure - 2 cohesive organizational structure is established within the Company in order to identify.

asscss. monitor and control risks.

b. Board of dircctors - the apex of risk governance is the centralized oversight ol the Board of Directors providing,
direction and the necessary approvals of stratepics and policies in order to achiove defined corporate goals.

¢ Senior management - the senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achicving the
strategic goals within the Company’s pre-defined risk appetite.

a) Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benelit payments or the timing
thereot. differ frem expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims. severity of claims. actual benefits paid and
subsequent development of long—term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilitics.

‘The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a
propertional and non—proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota share reinsurance which is
taken out 1o reduce the overall exposure of the Cempany (o certain classes of business. Non—proportional reinsurance is
primarily excess- off loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company’s net expesure to catastrophe losses, Relention
limits for the excess—of=loss reinsurance vary by product line and territory.,

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers arc estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and arc in
accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved ol its
direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respeet w reinsurance eeded. 10 the extent that
any reinsurer is unable (o meet its oblipations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements. The Company”s placement of’
reinsuranee is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single reinswrer nor are the operations of the Company
substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and
ceonomical, atmospheric disturbances. concentration of risks. civil riots cte. The Company manages these risk through the
measures described above, The Company has limited its risk by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in erder 1o limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g.. hurricanes, earthquakes
and flood damage). The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is 1o limit exposure 1o catastrophes based
on the Company’s risk appetite as decided by management. The Board may decide to increase or decrease the maximum
tolerances based on market conditions and other factors,
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
NOTES TO TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 Deeember 2021
(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a)  Insurance risk (continued)

Concentration of insarance risk
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in
medical and motor segment.

I'he Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location.
For Mlood or carthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location, For fite and property risk a particular building
and neighbering buildings, which could be alfected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly.
for marine risk. multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration
of risk. The Company evaluates the cancentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and cstablishes
its reinsurance policy 1o reduce such exposures Lo levels acceptable to the Company.,

Sinee the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia. all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia,

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of cutslanding
claims. whether reported or not. and includes expected claims settlement costs. The principal assumption underlying the
liability esiimates is that the Company’s future claims development will follow a similar pattern to past claims development
experience. This includes assumptions in respect of average claim costs. claim handling costs. claim inflation factors and
claim numbers for cach accident year. Additional qualitative judgements are used to assess the extent to which past trends
may not apply in the future, for example: onc—off occurrence. changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming,
economic conditions. as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling procedures.
Judgement is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government
legislation affect the estimates. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation ol amounts due to
policyholders arising from claims made under msurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions
about several factors invelving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may
differ from management’s estimates resulting in {uwre changes in estimated labilitics. Qualitative judgments arc used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example onc-ofl occurrence, changes in market fuctors
such as public attitude to cluiming and cconomic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent 1o which external
lactors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reperted al the statement of financial
position date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the statement of financial
position date.

Process used to decide on assumptions

‘I'he process used o deiermine the assumptions for caleulating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
reasonable estimates of the mest likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very dilticult to predict
with certainty the Iikely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notitied claims, Pach notified claim is
assessed on a separale, case by case basis with due regard 1o ¢laim circumstances. informatien available from surveyors and
historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new
information is available,

The estimation of [I3NR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling
claims already notiticd 1o the Company. in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation
process takes into account the past elaims reporting pattern and details ol reinsurance programs.

The ultimate cost of eutstanding claims s estimated by using a range ol standard actuearial claims projection techniques.
such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-I'erguson methods.
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDT JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'TS (continued)

For the vear ended 31 December 2021

(ALl amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Insurance risk (continued)
Process used to decide on assumptions (continued)

The main assumption underlying thesc techniques is that a Company's past claims development experience can be uscd 10
project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. As such. these methods extrapolate the development of
paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claini numbers based on the observed development of carlier vears and
expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years. but ean also be further analysed by
geographical arca. as well as by significant business lines and elaim types. Large claims are usuaily separately addressed.
cither by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimales or separately projected in order to reflect their future
developmenl. In most cases. no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss raties,
Insicad, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are
based. Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may net apply in future, (c.g.. to
reflect one-oft oceurrences. changes in external or market factors such as public atlitudes to claiming. cconomic conditions.
levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation. as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix. policy featurcs
and claims handling precedurcs) in order 1o arrive at the estimated uliimate cost of elaims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes. taking account of all the uncertaintics involved.

The premium liahilities have been detcrmined such that the totat premium lsbility provisions {uncarned premium rescrve
and premium deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims
and expenses likely 1o oceur en the unexpired paolicies as at the statement of [inancial position date. The expected future
liability is determined vsing estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts
and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate.
However, these amounls are not certain and actual payments may ditfer from the claims liabilities provided in the financial
statements. The insurance claim liabilitics are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the
sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.

A hypothetical 5% change in the claim ratio. net of reinsurance. would impact net underwriting income/(loss) as follows:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (tlecrease) in
Change in in net underwriting
assumptions liahilities surplus

Ullimate loss ratio
2021 +- 5% 28,352,214 28,352,214
2020 - 3% 26419888 26.419.888

b)  Reinsurance risk
In order o minimize financial exposure arising from farge claims. the Company. in the normal course of business. enters
into agreements with other partics for reinsurance purposcs.

I'e minimize its exposure 1 significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evatuates the financial condition of
its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising [rom similar peographic regions. activities or economic

charactenistics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company™s Board of Dircctors, The eriteria

may be summarized as follews:

*h
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPLERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPI'ANY)

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwvise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

b} Reinsurance risk (continued)
- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (c.p. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent
- Reputation of particular reinsurance companies
- Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furtherimore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of” the
reinsurers, wherever applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed lo pre-set requirements of the
Company's Board of Dircctors before approving them for exchange ol reinsurance business. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020. there is no significant concentration of reinsurance balances.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyhelders and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails o meet the obligations

under the reinsurance agreements.

¢) Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affeet future profitability or the fair
valucs of financial instruments, The Company is exposed 1o commission rate risk on its murabaha deposits and investment
in Sukuks,

The Company have murabaha deposits and investment in Sukuks. with the exception ol restricted deposits which are
required to be maintained in accordance with regulations in Saudi Arabia on which the Coempany does not carn any
commission. Management limits commission rate risk by monitoring changes in commission rates in the currencics in which
its deposits are denominated. The Company had no deposits in currencics ether than Saudi Rival,

The following information demonstrates the sensitivity of statement of income to possible changes in commission rates.

with all ather variables held constant.
2021 202¢

Increase/(decrease) in commission rates by 100 basis points 2,549,687 3410163

dy Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a [inancial instrument will fait to discharge an obligation and cause the other parly Lo
incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company. the maximum credit risk exposure 1o the
Company is the carrving value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company™s exposure to credit risk:
2. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. the Company cvaluates the financial
condition of ils reinsurers. Accordingly. as a pre-requisite. the parties with whoem reinsurance is eftfected are required

0 have a minimum acceptable security rating level aftirming their {financial strength.

b, The Company seeks 1o manage its credit risk with respect 1o customers by setting credit limits for individual customers
and by monitoring outstanding receivables.

e

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with local banks approved by the management. Accordingly. as a pre-
requisite. the bank with whom cash and cash equivalents are maintained is required o have a minimum acceptable
security rating level affirming its tinancial strength,

The Company does not have an internal credit ratings assessment process. and accordingly, amounts which are neither past
due nor impaired, in respect of client balances. are from individuals and unrated corporate counter partics. Balances due
from reinsurers are with counterpartics who have investment grade credit ratings issued by external rating agencies.

rh



SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounts in Sandi Rivals unless othenvise stared)

23  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

d)  Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit visk for the components of the statement of financial position.

Cash in banks

NMurabaha deposits

Premiums and reinsurers' receivable - net

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims and reserves
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but pot reported
Available-for-sale investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Statutory deposit

Other assets

Credit quality

The credit quality of the financial asscts is as follows:

Credit quality

Cash and cash equivalents

Very strong
Satisfactory
Unrated

Murabaha deposits

Very strong
Satisfactory
Unrated

Investments
Very strong
Satisfactory
Unrated

* Credit rathgr souree: Moody's

Al other Ninancial assels are unrated.

* Credit Rating

Aaa - A2
A3 - Baad
Unrated

Aaa - A2
A3 - Band
Unrated

Ana- A2
A3 - Baad
Unrated

2021 2020
52,014,680 49.984.698
254,965,731 341.916.296
261,411,771 245.872.196
377,883,139 339.166,728
03,106,710 43.367.257
1,923,080 1,923,080
75,942,638 35,531,657
30,000,000 30.000.,000
62,537,111 53.213.489
1,181,784,860 1.140.975 401
2021 2020
52,014,680 45.894.903
- 4,089.795
13,749 135,029
52,028,429 49.999.727
254,965,731 246474362
- 95441934
254,965,731 341916296
168,028,972 125.560.197
161,028 -
1,923,080 1.923.080
170,113,080 127,483,277

Very strong quality: Capitalization. carnings. {inancial strength. liquidity, management, market reputation and repayment

ability are excellent.

Satisfactory guality: Require regular monitoring due to financial risk factors. Ability to repay remains at a satislactorn

level,

‘h
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COVIPANY
(A SAUDIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

{41 wmounts in Saudi Rivals unless othersvise stated)

23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

f)  Currency risk

Currencey risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due o exchange rate fluctuation. as the majority of
monetary assets and liabilitics are in currencies linked to the Saudi Rivals.

g} Market price risk

Marker price risk is the risk that the faiv value of fuwre cash lows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because off
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). whether those changes are
caused by (actors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors altecting all similar financial
instrument traded in the market.

The Company has investment in unquoted equity instruments carried at cost where the impact of changes in equity price
will anly be rellected when the instrument is sold or deemed o be impaired and then the statement of changes in equity will

he impacted.

hy  Capital management
Objectives are set by the Company 1o maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximize shareholders” value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a
regular basis. Adjustments 1o corrent capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk
characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to sharcholders or issue new shures.

The Company manages its capital 1o cnsure that it is able 1o continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’
capital requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the retern to stakeholders through
the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity atiributable e
cquiny holders comyprising paid sharc capital. reserves and retained earnings.

As per guldelines laid oul by SAMA in Article 66 of the Tmplementing Insurance Regulutions detailing the solvency margin
required to be maintained. the Company shall maintain solveney margin equivalent to the highest of the following three
metheds as per SAMA Implementing Regulations:

. NMinimum Capital Requircment of SR 100 million
. Premium Solveney Margin
. Claims Selvencey Margin

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements with sound solvency imargin. The capital
structure of the Company as at 31 December 2021 consists of paid-up share capital of SR 300 million. statutory reserves ol
SR 29,5 million and accumulated losses of SR 33.7 million (31 December 20200 paid-up share capital ol SR 300 million.
statutory reserves of SR 29,5 mitlion and retained carnings of SR 27 million) in the statement of {inancial position.

I the opinion of the Board of Iirectors. the Company has fully complicd with the externally imposed capital requirements
during the reported financiat period.

n



SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDIL JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

1

NOTES 1O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amonnts in Saudi Rivals unless othervise stated)
23 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

i)  Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements in Saudi Arabia. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose cerlain restrictive provisions c.g. capital adequacy 0
minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companics and o enable them to meet unforeseen
Jiabilities as these arise, The Company is compliant of minimum capital adequacy prescribed by the regutator.

iy Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising [rom a wide varicty of causes associated with the processes.
technotopy and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations cither internally within the Company or externally at
the Compaiy’s service providers. and frem external factors other than credit. market and tiquidity risks such as those
arising Irom legal and regulatory reguirements and generally aceepted standards of investment management behavior,
Operational visks arise from all of the Company s activitics.

I'he Company’s objective is (o manage operational risk so as 1o balance limiting of financial losses and damage (o its
reputation with achicving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the
development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility
encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions. roles and responsibilitics:

- Requireiments for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions:

- Compliance with regulatory and other Tegal reguirements:

- Documentation of centrels and procedures:

- Requirements for the periodic assessmeni ot operational risks faced. and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to addiess the risks identified:

- Ethical and business standards: and

- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

Senior Management ensures that the Company's stalt has adequate training and expericnee and fosters eflective
communication related 1o operational visk management.

24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received (o sell an asset or paid to transter a Tisbiline in an orderly (ransaction belween
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transactions
take place cither:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or liability, or
~in the accessible principal market. in the most advantagous accessible marketfor the asset or liability

I'he management assessed that cash and cash cquivalent. acerual and other liabilities und other financial asscts and
liahilities approximate their carrving amounts largely duye to the short term maturities of these instruments,

The Company uses the following hicrarchy Tor determining and disclosing the [air value of Tinancial instruments:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in an active market (that are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 20 Valuation techniques (for which the lowest feve! input that is significant o the Tair value measurement is dircetly
or indirectly obscrvable), and

[evel 30 Waluation technigues (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Tair value measurement is
unabservable).

During the vear ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no transters between Level 1oand Level 2 fair vatue

nieasurements. and no transfers into or out ot Level 3 fair value measurements,

h
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SAUDI ARABIAN COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Al amounes in Sewdi Rivals unless otherwise stuted)

24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

a) Carrying amounts and fair value
The lollowing table summarizes the linancial assets recorded al lair value as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 by level of' the
fair value hicrarchy.

As at 31 December 2021 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
IFAVTPL investments 92,247,362 92,247,362 - - 92,247,362
92,247,362 92,247,362 - - i 92,247,362
Asat 31 December 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total
Financial assets:
FVTPL investments 90,028,310 90.028.540 - - 90028540
90,028,540 90.028.340 - - ___90.028.510

The fair values of other financial assets and Habilitics. not included in the table above. are not materially difterent from the
carrving values included in the financial statements.

b) Measurement of Fair values

Available-for-sale investment represents unquoted seeurities amounted o SR 1.9 million in respect of the Company s share
in the capital of Najm. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 Decomber 2020, the investment has not been measured at fair value
in the absence of active market or other means of measuring their falr value reliably. However, the management belicves
that there is no major dilference between the carrving value and fair value of the investment.

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONTINGENCIES

a. Legal proceedings and regulations

‘The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject w legal proceedings in the normal course ol business. While
it is not practicable to forccast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings. management
does not believe that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a material effect on 1ts results and financial position.

b. As al 31 December 2021, performance guarantees amounting to SR <4.35 million {31 December 2020: SR 3.4 million)
were issued 1o the customers on behall of the Company. The Company pledgaed bank balances cquivalent to the amount of
performance guarantees to the bank for obtaining such guarantees.

COMMITMENTS
¢. During 2020, the Company entered into an agreament Tor the construction of the commercial building on the land under
deed No. 2/214 Tocated at the Salahuddin AlL-Ayyubi Read. Rivadh. Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Company is committed 10 hali” of the incurred capital expenditure for the acquisition ol land and construction of the
building. and the transaction will be recognized as the development progresses and upon completion of the wansfer of the
underlving right and obligations.

The estimated commitnent as at balance sheet date but not recognized in the financial statement are as Tollows:

2021 2020

Acquisition of the Land 12,663,500 12.663.300
Construction of the Building 46,283,250 38.000.000
58,946,750 50.663.500

N
o
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